
 

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting 
officer or from Charlotte Forrest, Senior Democratic Services Officer on 0161 342 2346 or 
charlotte.forrest@tameside.gov.uk, to whom any apologies for absence should be notified. 

 

NORTH STRATEGIC NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM 
 

Day: Tuesday 
Date: 23 March 2021 
Time: 6.30 pm 
Place: Zoom 

 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page 
No 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2.   MINUTES  1 - 6 

 To receive the Minutes of the meeting of the North Strategic Neighbourhood 
Forum held on 19 January 2021. 

 

3.   BIG CONVERSATION  7 - 10 

 To receive a presentation from the Assistant Director of Policy, Performance 
and Communication. 

 

4.   COMMUNITY SAFETY NEIGHBOURHOOD STRATEGY  11 - 22 

 To receive a presentation from the Director of Operations and 
Neighbourhoods. 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

NORTH STRATEGIC NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM 
 

19 January 2021 
 
Commenced: 6.30 pm  

 

Terminated: 8.40 pm 

Present: Councillors Bowerman (Chair), Sidebottom (Vice-Chair), Bray, 
Choksi, Fairfoull, Glover, Hollinshead, Lewis and McNally 

 
Apologies for Absence: None 

 
 

5.   
 

MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED 
The Minutes of the meeting of the North Strategic Neighbourhood Forum held on 13 October 
2020 were approved as a correct record. 
 
 
6.   
 

CENSUS 2021  
 

The Performance, Intelligence and Scrutiny Service Manager introduced Mr Graham Thomas, the 
Census Engagement Manager for Tameside, who gave a presentation on the plans for the 
forthcoming Census 2021.   
 
It was explained that the Office for National Statistics carried out a census every ten years to find 
out more about the people who live in England and Wales.  The next census would take place on 21 
March 2021 and would be a “Digital-First” with 90% of households receiving an invitation to 
complete the survey electronically.   Paper copies would also be made available. 
 
It was further explained that the Census would provide the most detailed demographic information 
about society; it would provide information on key demographics, living arrangements, health, 
education and jobs and the data from it would help inform policy at a local and national level for 
years to come.  It would also provide important insight into the impact of the pandemic on society.  
Completion of the Census also affected future local funding, so it was essential that Tameside was 
represented effectively, ensuring services and funding were directed to those places where they 
were most needed. 
 
The Census Engagement Manager outlined a number of key population groups identified as hard to 
reach that included:- 
 

 Pakistani 

 Bangladeshi 

 Indian 

 Eastern European 

 Adults aged 80 and over 

 Low Income Households 

 Veterans 

 People lacking digital skills aged 65 and over  
 
In order to ensure that the census in Tameside was successful, it would be crucial to engage 
effectively with these groups.  The local knowledge of Councillors had an important role to play in 
encouraging engagement among these groups.  A number of key engagements that had been 
carried out were highlighted and included:- 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2.



 
 

 
 

 BAME – Mosques / Temples 

 Councillor Network – Individual Meetings / Development Sessions 

 Charities – Action Together, Age UK, Foodbanks and Tameside and Glossop MIND 

 Diversity Matters 

 Eastern European Supermarkets 

 Housing Associations 

 Veterans – Tameside Armed Forces Services 

 Local Media – Tameside Correspondent / Tameside Reporter / Tameside Radio and In & 
Around 

 
The Performance, Intelligence and Scrutiny Service Manager provided details of six Online Census 
Support Centres located in Ashton, Denton, Droylsden, Hattersley, Hyde and Stalybridge Libraries.  
Residents would be able to access PCs to complete the census themselves within the library or 
access assistance from a trained advisor to complete the census.  In light of the current National 
Lockdown restrictions, plans for the hubs were being kept under regular review. 
 
Members enquired how the Online Census Support Centres would be publicised and requested 
traditional methods of advertising to be used in addition to digital methods.  It was confirmed that 
local media would be used alongside posters and leaflets.  A discussion ensued regarding the 
digital focus of this year’s census, particularly access among those groups that did not have access 
to digital technology, and how best to engage with the hard to reach groups within the community. 
 
The Chair thanked Mr Thomas for his informative presentation. 
 
RESOVLED 
That the content of the presentation be noted. 
 
 
7.   
 

COVID-19 UPDATE  
 

The Public Health Consultant gave a presentation updating Members on the situation in Tameside 
in respect of COVID-19.   
 
A graph detailing the new positive cases per 100,000 people each week indicated that the current 
rate of new cases in Tameside was 359.8 per 100,000 people in the past seven days.  Rates had 
increased rapidly in recent weeks with the highest numbers of new cases being in younger working 
age adults (aged 20 - 40 years old) with high numbers of outbreaks in a variety of settings across 
the Borough.  It was suggested that this increase in infection rates was in part due to a new highly 
transmissible variant of coronavirus that now accounted for approximately 70% of new cases in the 
Borough.  However, there were signs that the rate of infection was stabilising and the positivity rate 
(proportion of all tests that come back positive) was reducing.   
 
Tameside currently had the eighth lowest infection rate out of the Greater Manchester authorities 
with Oldham and Rochdale being lower.  Greater Manchester still had lower rates than the National 
average; however, neighbouring areas such as the Liverpool City Region had very high and growing 
rates, which was an area of concern.  Hospital activity was steadily increasing and there was an 
expectation that this would continue over the coming weeks. 
 
The Public Health Consultant highlighted the three main places where COVID-19 was able to 
spread easily - crowded places, close contact settings and confined enclosed spaces.  The following 
communities within Tameside that were most likely to be exposed to these conditions were:- 

 People and families living in overcrowded housing 

 People with poor working conditions 

 People who used public transport or car sharing for work 

 People undertaking certain types of work (e.g. taxi drivers) 

 People working in smaller settings (e.g. takeaways and small shops) 

Page 2



 
 

 
 

In addition, older people, occupational exposure and those living with a long-term health condition 
were particularly susceptible to a greater risk of severe disease.  
 
The basic measures to reduce the risk of transmission were reinforced and included:- 
 

 Regular, thorough handwashing with soap and running water 

 Social distancing from others of at least 2 metres 

 Wearing a facemask / covering when in situations where there was an increased risk of 
COVID-19 transmission (crowded places, close contact settings and confined enclosed 
spaces). 

 
The importance of following the relevant guidance and restrictions was also emphasised and 
included reducing social contacts, the National lockdown and only undertaking essential travel and 
retail. 
 
It was imperative to stop the spread of the disease by quickly finding infections through utilising 
‘Test Trace and Isolate’ and initialising the Outbreak Management Plan.  PCR testing was now 
widely available for those with symptoms at mobile and fixed sites across the Borough and rapid 
lateral flow asymptomatic testing for front line staff and schools had been introduced at Dukinfield 
Town Hall and Stalybridge Civic Hall.  Solutions to tackling the pandemic such as the rapid roll out 
of the vaccination programme, initially to priority groups to prevent deaths and protect the most 
vulnerable, were highlighted. 
 
The Council, in partnership with the Clinical Commissioning Group, would continue to engage with 
local communities to provide information, support and listen to concerns and provide ongoing 
messaging with regards to the National lockdown, testing and the roll out of the vaccination 
programme alongside the Community Champions programme. 
 
A discussion ensued in relation to the new variant of COVID-19 and Members requested that the 
graph of new positive cases per 100,000 people every 7 days detailed the total number of cases 
that had been infected with the new variant and the number of cases in each age bracket.  Members 
commented on the current lockdown and pockets of the community who were reluctant to be 
vaccinated.  Members also voiced concerns over the high level of deaths within Tameside and high 
hospital infection rates. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the content of the presentation be noted. 
 
 
8.   
 

DEVELOPING COMMUNITY CHAMPIONS MODEL  
 

The Public Health Programme Officer delivered a presentation on the Tameside Community 
Champions model that helped to support a COVID safe and healthy Tameside. 
 
It was explained that the Community Champions network had been developed to empower 
Tameside residents with up to date information about COVID-19 that they could disseminate within 
their communities.  The Council had continued to provide the Community Champions with the latest 
advice and guidance about COVID-19 to enable their family, friends and other community members 
to have timely and accurate information.  By sharing this clear information, it was hoped that it would 
enable residents to make informed choices and provide an opportunity for the community to share 
information they had heard about coronavirus, ask questions and dispel any myths.  
 
The Council had recruited 182 Champions to date from a variety of different backgrounds with 
representation from every ward within the Borough.  Recruitment was ongoing and it was hoped that 
the diversity could be further increased to ensure the best representation of Tameside residents.     
 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

The Community Champions model was explained to Members - information was provided to the 
Community Champions via Zoom calls, email, telephone and WhatsApp on a regular basis and the 
Champions would then share the information in the way that worked best for them.  The Champions 
would then share ideas, ask questions and provide feedback to ensure everyone was working 
together to get the message right.  
 
Existing Community Champions projects were detailed that included a book swop scheme, an age 
friendly newsletter, a traffic warden face mask project, Primary School activity books and a young 
people question and answer video session.  Ideas going forward for 2021 were outlined and 
included a vaccination question and answer session, a WhatsApp broadcast and engagement with 
priority groups. 
 
Members extended their thanks to the Public Health Programme Officer for a very interesting 
presentation and encouraged people to sign up to become a Community Champion.   
 
RESOLVED 
That the content of the presentation be noted. 
 
 
9.   
 

COVID-19 VACCINATION ROLLOUT  
 

The Director of Commissioning delivered a presentation on the Tameside and Glossop COVID-19 
vaccination programme.  The aims of the vaccination programme were to prevent morbidity and 
mortality by protecting those individuals most vulnerable to COVID-19 including individuals aged 
over 70, care home residents and staff, frontline health and social care workers and the clinically 
extremely vulnerable.   
 
Members were informed that as of 15 January 2021 16,000 people in Tameside and Glossop had 
received their first dose of a coronavirus vaccine and a further 2,000 individuals had received both a 
first and second dose of one of the approved vaccines.  Overall, 90% of those aged 80 years and 
over had been vaccinated compared to 36% in the North West region and 35% nationally.  The Safe 
Steps app showed that 96% of care home residents had given consent to be vaccinated.  The 
rollout of the vaccine for housebound people aged 75 and over had commenced and the aim was to 
complete this within ten days.  For the week beginning 18 January 2021, it was expected that 6,000 
vaccinations would be delivered (4000 Astra Zeneca and 2000 Pfizer).  It was confirmed that there 
was no wastage or stockpiling of vaccinations. 
 
It was reported that it was becoming evident that some hard to reach communities were accessing 
the vaccination programme less than others.  Information had been produced in many different 
languages and work was ongoing with the Policy, Performance and Communication team to 
address this emerging issue.  The team were also working with community leaders and from next 
week onwards would have access to a Greater Manchester mobile vaccination van.  It was hoped 
that this would help reach targeted communities in addition to visiting housebound residents.  
Health inequalities analysis needed to be undertaken but access to vaccination data on the national 
systems was still problematic; work was underway with Greater Manchester to resolve this.   
 
With regard to the next phase, it was explained that the aim was a further reduction in 
hospitalisation and targeted vaccination of those at high risk of exposure and / or those delivering 
key public services including:- 
 

 Teachers 

 Police / First Responders 

 Military Personnel 

 Those working in the justice system 

 Transport Workers 

 Public servants essential to the pandemic response 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

The next steps of the vaccination programme were outlined as follows:- 
 

 Complete Priorities 1 – 3 for all PCNS including revisiting Care Homes 

 Visit housebound residents who were over 70 to vaccinate them and their care givers where 
appropriate / possible 

 Transfer of responsibility for wider health, social care and system staff to Integrated Care 
Foundation Trust 

 Review of activity data including health inequalities; identify if any areas or communities are 
below where they should be and develop mitigating actions 

 Review vaccination clinic staffing models, which was essential to maintain resilient a General 
Practice 

 
Key messages were reiterated and the Director stressed that the public could have confidence that 
all of the approved vaccines were safe and that residents would receive an invitation to book a 
vaccination appointment when the time was right from either their GP or NHS.  Members of the 
public were being encouraged to attend the drive-thru vaccination clinic where possible but the 
vaccination centre at Oxford Park in Ashton-under-Lyne was now operational.  It remained important 
that once an individual had been vaccinated they continued to follow the social distancing rules. 
Whilst the vaccine could prevent a person from becoming seriously ill with COVID-19, it could take 
up to 2 – 3 weeks for the vaccination to become effective meaning it was still possible for a 
vaccinated individual to carry and spread the virus to others. 
 
Members praised the outstanding achievement of the vaccination programme and extended their 
thanks to the Director of Commissioning and the wider team for the excellent organisation and 
successful roll out of the programme in Tameside and Glossop. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the content of the presentation be noted. 
 
 
10.   
 

CHILDREN'S WORK ON NEIGHBOURHOODS / SCHOOLS AND HUMANITARIAN HUB  
 

The Assistant Director of Children’s Services introduced the Head of Service for Early Help, 
Neighbourhoods and the Early Years Service, the Head of Safeguarding and Quality Assurance and 
the Head of Education, Improvement and Partnerships, who attended the meeting to deliver a 
presentation on the work in Neighbourhoods, Schools and the Humanitarian Hub. 
 
The Head of Service for Early Help, Neighbourhoods and the Early Years Service, began by 
explaining the range of targeted support delivered to vulnerable families during the coronavirus 
pandemic and the National lockdowns.  The challenges faced by the team and service users were 
outlined and included:- 
 

 Adapting to new ways of working 

 Working from home 

 IT 

 Not being able to have face to face contact with families 

 The impact and sustainability of delivering Evidence based interventions virtually to families 

 The emotional impact on children and young people 

 How do we know children are safe 

 School / Early Years closures 

 Families using the pandemic as an excuse to disengage 

 Getting vulnerable children into school during lockdown 

 Administration of Free School Meals  
 
A selection of positive feedback the service had received from families was also highlighted. 
 

Page 5



 
 

 
 

The Head of Safeguarding and Quality Assurance detailed service and external pressures during 
the pandemic, when the demand for Early Help and Social Care Services had been very high.  
Examples of excellent work by social workers during this time were demonstrated. 
 
The Head of Education, Improvement and Partnerships gave information in respect of the work 
undertaken by schools during an unprecedented challenging time.  She was pleased to report that 
the majority of schools in Tameside had remained fully or partially open with only a small number of 
closures related to COVID-19 related staffing issues. 
 
The support that had been made available to all schools and colleges was outlined and included:- 
 

 Collective processes, which supported safe and sensible local decision-making 

 Planning and communication: daily calls, scenario planning group, TASH, TPC, Special 
School Heads, a weekly bulletin from the Assistant Director 

 Public Health and Health and Safety webinars 

 Risk assessment template and advice, regular COVID Committee review process 

 Round the clock availability of officers for schools 

 Parent Helpline for parents with children with additional needs 

 A range of support with remote learning 

 Additional laptops for disadvantaged children who were isolating due to COVID-19 

 Improvement and Partnerships offer to schools streamlined and focused on disadvantaged 
children 

 
Members were informed that during the October half term over 5,000 supermarket vouchers were 
distributed.  The Winter Covid grant was utilised over the Christmas holiday and would be used for 
the upcoming February half term break.  Schools continued to provide food parcels or supermarket 
vouchers for children isolating or unable to attend school due to COVID-19. 
 
Members thanked the representatives of Children’s Services for the informative presentation and 
praised their achievements with vulnerable young people and the collaborative work that had been 
undertaken with external partners and agencies.  Members commented on the emerging but evident 
success of early intervention work and extended their thanks to the schools and early years 
providers in the Borough for their hard work and efforts during the pandemic. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the content of the presentation be noted. 
 
 
  
 

Page 6



Big Conversation

Strategic Neighbourhood Forums

March 2021

Simon Brunet

1

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 3.



Big Conversation

2

Topic Lead
Closing

date

Active Tameside Tameside Council 26 Mar

Covid Test & Trace Healthwatch Tameside 2 Apr

Electoral ward boundaries and 

names

Local Government Boundary 

Commission for England (LGBCE)
6 Apr

Godley Green Garden Village Tameside Council 6 April

Mental Health Act reform
Department for Health and Social 

Care (DHSC)
21 Apr

Health Improvement Service Tameside Council 13 May

Dementia call for evidence – Black, 

Caribbean & African communities in 

GM

African Caribbean Care Group 

(ACCG)
Ongoing

P
age 8



Census 2021

3

• Census Day – 21 March 2021.

• Digital first Census.

• Census Support Centres – digital access / 

trained staff. Book on: 0161 342 2031.

• Paper copy for anyone who wants one. Ring 

national helpline: 0800 141 2021.

• Large print, text relay, braille, BSL, audio and 

video tools.

• Language helpline: 0800 587 2021.

P
age 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

Community Safety

Building Stronger Communities

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 4.



Community Safety Issues

• Crime

• Anti-social behaviour

• Domestic abuse

• Child sexual exploitation

• Child criminal exploitation

• Community Cohesion

• Violence

• Terrorism/Extremism

• Road safety

• Mental health

• Homelessness & rough 
sleeping

• Social isolation

• Drug & alcohol misuse

• Modern Slavery

• People trafficking

• Organised crime

• Online safety

• Fire Safety

• Neighbourhood Watch

2

P
age 12



3

Community Safety Strategy

• The Community Safety Strategy will:

– Incorporate the themes of the GM Police and Crime Plan – Standing Together

– Set priorities around the local needs of the community

– Address emerging issues

• The Community safety has 5 key priorities:

– Building stronger communities

– Preventing and reducing violent crime, knife crime & domestic abuse

– Preventing and reducing crime & anti-social behaviour

– Preventing and reducing the harm caused by drugs & alcohol

– Protecting vulnerable people and those at risk of exploitation

P
age 13



4

Community Safety

• Overarching objective of the Community Safety Strategy is
‘Building Stronger Communities’ to make Tameside a safer
place to live, study, work and visit

• To achieve this objective the Local Authority and Greater
Manchester Police will work in partnership through a joint
Neighbourhood Strategy focussing on local needs/priorities

P
age 14



5

Independent Advisory Group (IAG)

• Developed nationally by police forces and police authorities to provide
independent advice in understanding the role and impact of the police in diverse
communities

• In Tameside we are seeking to do this in a more co-operative way, and to
establish an IAG for the Community Safety Partnership as a whole.

• IAGs aim to:

– Improve the services provided by partners to all communities

– Build public confidence in these services

– Ensure that services respond sensitively to the needs of communities when
critical incidents occur

P
age 15



6

Independent Advisory Group (IAG)

• The Tameside IAG was formed in February 2020 just before the Covid-19
pandemic hit

• The group is diverse in its membership with members from all faith groups,
voluntary sector, community groups and charitable organisations with an
independent Chair – Reverend Joanna Farnworth

• The group haven’t been hindered by the pandemic, in fact the opposite –
meeting online every week

• Senior Police support attending every meeting

• Guest speakers attend and provide inputs

P
age 16



7

Anti-social Behaviour 

• The Covid-19 pandemic has seen a rise in Anti-social Behaviour complaints,
this has made an increase in demand on the service, particularly around
neighbour disputes

• Boosted the support of the team

• Proactive approach to dealing with serious Anti-social Behaviour issues

• Two recent Injunctions obtained
through the courts

• Two recent Closure Orders
authorised through the courts where
the premises concerned were the
cause of Anti-social Behaviour and
Covid-19 breaches

P
age 17



Anti-social Behaviour

8

Recent Closure Order authorised 
through the Magistrates Court for an 
AirBnB premises in Droyslden that had 
been the cause of Anti-social 
Behaviour and breaches of Covid 
regulations.

Reported on in the Manchester 
Evening News;

https://www.manchestereveningnews.c
o.uk/authors/stephen-topping/airbnb-
house-closed-court-after-20209300

P
age 18



9

Neighbourhood Watch

• Aim of creating a safer, stronger, and active
community where crime and anti-social
behaviour is less likely to happen

• Working in partnership with the Police, Local
Authority, voluntary organisations and
individuals and families who want to make their
neighbourhoods better places to live

• Pro-active partnership approach locally with
Neighbourhood Watch leaders

• Contributing to a sense of community

• www.tamesidenwa.co.uk

P
age 19



10

Youth Service

• The Youth Service were dynamic in their approach when responding to the pandemic.
Moving to street-based and outreach delivery of their service, they were able to continue
to engage, support and reassure young people in our communities

• The outreach work was continuous from March 2020 – November 2020. A feat matched
by only one other borough in the Greater Manchester region

• As restrictions eased, 4 of the boroughs Youth Centres opened, with outreach work
continuing to date

• The value of engagement with our communities 
youths and the support provided to them cannot 
be underestimated

• The Covid-19 pandemic meant that all Youth 
Centres had to close, with the potential of 
leaving many young people feeling they may not 
get the support they require

P
age 20



11

Youth Service

• The service has supported so many young people who have experienced loss
and grief and many young people who have struggled with their mental health
and well-being throughout the pandemic

• The feedback from parents is the service has been invaluable to the young
person and the family throughout the pandemic

• The service is committed to developing safe spaces where young people can
have fun and participate in a wide range of opportunities

• As schools have re-opened the delivery of ‘Safe Squad’ has commenced aimed
at year 6 pupils in 31 primary schools across the borough where young people
participate in workshops themed around Anti-social Behaviour, Online Safety,
Fire Safety in the home and First Aid

P
age 21



12

Thank you

Head of Community Safety – john.gregory@tameside.gov.uk

Partnership Manager (Community Safety) – dave.smith2@tameside.gov.uk

Youth Services Manager – melissa.hopwood@tameside.gov.uk

Enquiries - cshbusinesssupport@tameside.gov.uk

P
age 22


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	3. Big Conversation
	4. Community Safety Neighbourhood Strategy

